Public Document Pack

CLIMATE, BIODIVERSITY & PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL

Held on Tuesday, 28 March 2023

At 6.00 pm in the Gallery Room, The Corn Exchange, Witney

Present:

Councillor R Smith (Chair)

Councillors:	A Prosser J Aitman L Duncan	V Gwatkin P Hiles
Officers:	Adam Clapton Derek Mackenzie	Deputy Town Clerk Senior Administrative Officer & Committee Clerk
	Claire Green	Administration Support - Planning & Stronger Communities
	Carl Whitehead	Park Ranger

Others: 1 member of the public.

P173 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors T Ashby & J Aitman.

P174 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

There were no declarations of interest from members or officers.

P175 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

The Committee adjourned for this item.

The committee received representations from a resident of Manor Road in respect of application 23/00689/HHD to be discussed at part of Agenda Item 5.

At the discretion of the Chair planning application 23/00689/HHD was moved up the agenda and discussed after which the member of the public left the meeting.

The Committee reconvened.

P176 **<u>MINUTES</u>**

The minutes of the Climate, Biodiversity & Planning Committee meetings held on 24 January, 14 February and 7 March were received.

Resolved:

That, the minutes of the Climate, Biodiversity & Planning Committee meetings held on 24 January, 14 February and 7 March be approved as a correct record of the meeting and be signed by the Chair.

P177 PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee received and considered a schedule of planning applications from West Oxfordshire District Council.

In addition, the Committee also discussed planning application 23/00179/FUL for an Anaerobic Digestion Facility in the neighbouring South Leigh parish.

The Committee objected to the application on grounds of transport, road safety and community benefit.

Resolved:

That, the comments, as per the attached schedule and for 23/00179/FUL, be forwarded to West Oxfordshire District Council.

P178 PLANNING DECISIONS

The Committee received and considered a schedule of planning decisions received from West Oxfordshire District Council (WODC)

Resolved:

That, the list circulated advising of WODC planning decisions be noted.

P179 WODC - PLANNING VALIDATION CHECKLIST

The Committee received copies of the new Biodiversity checklist implemented by West Oxfordshire District Council (WODC)

Resolved:

That, that the new Biodiversity checklist be noted.

P180 NOTIFICATION OF PLANNING APPEAL - 118C QUARRY ROAD

The Committee received notice of planning appeal APP/D3125/W/22/3309162 – 118C Quarry Road, Witney.

Resolved:

That, the planning appeal decision be noted.

P181 NOTIFICATION OF PLANNING APPEAL - LAND SOUTHWEST OF DOWNS ROAD, CURBRIDGE BUSINESS PARK, WITNEY

The Committee received notice of planning appeal APP/D3125/W/22/3307358 – Land Southwest of Downs Road, Curbridge Business Park, Witney.

Resolved:

That, the planning appeal decision be noted.

P182 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE - 355C THORNEY LEYS, WITNEY

The Committee received the application from Barry's Food Store, 355C Thorney Leys, Witney for a new premises licence.

Resolved:

That, the Council makes no objection to this application.

P183 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE - 91 CORN STREET, WITNEY

The Committee received the application from Green Mobility Limited, 91 Corn Street, Witney for a new premises licence.

Resolved:

That, the Council makes no objection to this application.

P184 ADDRESS MANAGEMENT - ROAD AT GLENMORE BUSINESS CENTRE, WITNEY

The Committee received correspondence from West Oxfordshire District Council's address management team.

Members confirmed there were no objections to the proposed name of "Norreys Avenue".

Resolved:

That, the correspondence be noted.

P185 MANAGEMENT OF WATERCOURSE - SNIPE MEADOW

The Committee received and considered the report of the Biodiversity Officer.

Members discussed the current impact of the River Windrush and Colwell Brook overtopping their banks during flood events and how this might be prevented to maintain good water quality at Witney Lake. There was the possibility of working with the Environmental Agency (EA) to help alleviate the problem with improved bank maintenance and potential bunds, but this bore significant costs and EA approval was not guaranteed.

Further discussion took place on the wider issue of managing the watercourse over the Council's meadows, neighbouring sites and on contributing to a District Council proposal on how to gain more local autonomy over bank maintenance, with agreement this would be beneficial.

The Committee agreed to the recommendations contained in the report and asked that the Biodiversity Officer prioritised the watercourse stretches requiring the most urgent attention and makes an enquiry to the Environment Agency to ascertain the level of response. Further stretches could then be included in the facility's land management plan and budgeted for accordingly.

Resolved:

- 1. That, the report be noted and,
- 2. That, any tree works are to be carried out by the Ranger, the works team and if needed, the Council's preferred tree contractor Town & Country Trees and,
- 3. That no bank work is to be carried out without exploring the full costs beforehand and,
- 4. That, the Council reinstates and strengthen the pathway around the lake using binding ballast and,
- 5. That, the water in the lake be tested to clarify its status and,
- 6. That, the Biodiversity Officer prioritises the stretches of watercourse banks and enquires to the Environment Agency about the most urgent and,
- 7. That, the Biodiversity Officer contacts West Oxfordshire District Council regarding the issues of bank works along the watercourse and the difficulty in resolving them.

P186 **OPEN SPACES STRATEGY**

The Committee received and considered the report of the Biodiversity Officer.

Members heard that progress was underway on the action points relating to the Lake, Country Park, and Open Spaces in the Council's adopted Open Spaces Strategy. There was little more that could be done by officers at this point, however the current work would be expanded on, mostly with the help of volunteers in the coming months.

The Committee welcomed the feedback and were pleased to hear the number of volunteers was growing.

Resolved:

- 1. That, the report be noted and,
- 2. That, the Council has a Tree policy which outlines its strategy going forward.
- 3. That, the Council has a significant resource, and it needs to be made use of and maintained to facilitate use by as wide a range of users as possible.
- 4. That, the Lake & Country Park should be promoted as a "health and wellbeing" resource.
- 5. That, the value of volunteers is enormous in both the output of their work and also more importantly the social interactions and wellbeing created in a like-minded, well-motivated and confidently led team.

P187 **TREESCAPE REPORT**

The Committee received and considered the report of the Biodiversity Officer.

Members were presented with a report which was presented to the Council in 2022 which highlighted the Council's current tree and hedging stock and proposals on how these could be increased over the coming years. The report was comprehensive, and officers were able to utilise many aspects in long term management plans and projects, but there were also some aspects which simply would not be possible due to designated land use.

The Committee agreed that officers should explore projects on a case-by-case basis as and when time allowed to bring the proposals, such as a community orchard to fruition. With the right support and resources, the Council could maximise its potential to increase the natural capital of green spaces.

Resolved:

- 1. That the report be noted and
- 2. That each area needed to be looked at on a "case by case" basis.

P188 SWIFT BRICKS

The Committee received the correspondence from the principal planning policy officer at West Oxfordshire District Council (WODC) regarding the consideration of Swift Bricks.

A member also updated that since the correspondence was received on 10 February, discussions have progressed at WODC and that it is an expectation that the use of Swift Bricks will be included in the Local Plan.

Resolved:

That, the correspondence is noted.

P189 WODC - ELECTRIC VEHICLE (EV) CAR CLUB SCHEME AT WOODFORD WAY

The Committee were pleased to hear that an opportunity for residents to experience the use of Electric Vehicles (EV) would be possible under this scheme.

A Member had already heard of the news and reported to the committee that the scheme was not yet live on the Enterprise website but looking at other similar schemes in the area it looked very promising. Members were keen to encourage use as there was no known car share scheme in the witney area.

Resolved:

- 1. That, the council would actively promote the scheme and,
- 2. That, the council does not have any feedback for WODC regarding the scheme currently.

The meeting closed at: 8.00 pm

Chair

This page is intentionally left blank

Minute Item P177

Witney Town Council

Planning Minutes - 28th March 2023

177

177- 1	WTC/046/23	Plot Ref :-23/00330/LBC	Type :-	LISTED BUI	
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	06/03/23	
	Location :-	35 - 37 WOODGREEN WOODGREEN	Date Returned :-	29/03/23	
	Proposal :	Replacement of single glazed wooden rea	r window.		
	Observations :	: Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.			
177- 2	WTC/047/23	Plot Ref :-23/00344/FUL	Туре :-	FULL	
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	06/03/23	
	Location :-	70 HIGH STREET HIGH STREET	Date Returned :-	29/03/23	
	Proposal :	: Replacement of two first floor windows in front elevation.			
	Observations :	: Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.			
177- 3	WTC/048/23	Plot Ref :-23/00290/HHD) Туре :-	HOUSEHOLDE	
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	06/03/23	
		71 BURFORD ROAD BURFORD ROAD	Date Returned :-	29/03/23	
	Proposal :	Erection of garden office.			
	Observations :	: Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.			
477 4			Turca		
177- 4	WTC/049/23	Plot Ref :-23/00340/HHE	51	HOUSEHOLDE	
	Applicant Name :-	34 TOWNSEND ROAD	Date Received :- Date Returned :-	06/03/23	
	Location	TOWNSEND ROAD	Date Returned	29/03/23	
	Proposal: Conversion of existing integral garage into a second reception roor		n room.		
	Observations :	: While Witney Town Council does not object to this proposed development, Members expressed concern for limited cycle storage following the loss of garage space. Members ask that efforts are made by the applicant to provide cycle storage adequate for a family home.			
177- 5	WTC/050/23	Plot Ref :-23/00280/HHD) Type :-	HOUSEHOLDE	
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	06/03/23	
		107 BURFORD ROAD BURFORD ROAD	Date Returned :-	29/03/23	
	Proposal :	Erection of a two storey side and replacen roof mounted solar panels. Construction o carport.			

177- 6	WTC/051/23	Plot Ref :-23/00360/HHI	D Type :-	HOUSEHOLDE
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	06/03/23
	Location :-	104 BARRINGTON CLOSE BARRINGTON CLOSE	Date Returned :-	29/03/23
	Proposal :	Remove existing conservatory, proposed	two storey pitched r	oof rear extension.
	Observations :	While Witney Town Council does not obje material concerns, it notes the loss of per- mitigating measures are considered to he water flooding in this area, in accordance Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.	neable drainage and p decrease the pos	d would ask that sibility of surface
177- 7	WTC/052/23	Plot Ref :-23/00451/HHI	D Type :-	HOUSEHOLDE
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	06/03/23
		180 FARMERS CLOSE FARMERS CLOSE	Date Returned :-	29/03/23
	Proposal :	Proposed first floor extension and two sto modifications.	rey side extension. I	nternal layout
	Observations :	s: While Witney Town Council does not object to this application, members as that the proposed development does not have detrimental impact on the amenity of the neighbouring property.		
177- 8	WTC/053/23	Plot Ref :-23/00471/HHI	D Type :-	HOUSEHOLDE
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	20/03/23
		7 SPRING MEADOW SPRING MEADOW WITNEY	Date Returned :-	29/03/23
	Proposal :	Single storey rear extension.		
	Observations :	Witney Town Council has no objections re	garding this applica	tion.
177- 9	WTC/054/23 Applicant Name :-	Plot Ref :-23/00469/FUL	. Type :- Date Received :-	FULL 20/03/23
	Location :-	ABBOTT DIABETES CARE RANGE ROAD WITNEY	Date Returned :-	29/03/23
	Proposal :	Demolition of existing single storey eleme existing buildings together with associated		ktensions to two
	Observations :	While Witney Town Council does not object discussed the proposed mitigations to pro- site as outlined in the documents accompa- that the West Oxfordshire District Council assessment of this to ensure that adequate habitats and that proportionate opportunities enhancement at the site. In accordance we	tect and enhance bi anying the application Biodiversity Officer a protection is given es are sought for bio	odiversity at the on. Members ask makes careful n for existing odiversity

177- 10	WTC/055/23 Applicant Name :- Location :-	Plot Ref :-23/00610/HHI 74 WEST END WEST END WITNEY	D Type :- Date Received :- Date Returned :-	HOUSEHOLDE 20/03/23 29/03/23	
	Proposal :	Refurbishment works to include the install rear roof slope.	ation of three roof lig	ghts in existing	
	Observations :	: Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.			
177- 11	WTC/056/23 Applicant Name :- Location :-	74 WEST END	Type :- Date Received :- Date Returned :-	LISTED BUI 20/03/23 29/03/23	
		WEST END WITNEY			
	Proposal :	: Internal and external alterations to refurbish the existing house, including the installation of three roof lights in existing rear roof slope, removal of existing chimney from single storey rear extension together with internal changes to reinstate open fireplace.			
	Observations :	: Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.			
177- 12	WTC/057/23	Plot Ref :-23/00634/S73	51	VARIATION	
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	20/03/23	
	Location :-	1 ST MARYS COURT ST MARYS COURT WITNEY	Date Returned :-	29/03/23	
	Proposal :	: Variation of condition 2 of permission 21/02628/FUL to allow amendments to the balconies and their roofs and to raise the floor level by 300mm from existing building.			
	Observations :	Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.			
177- 13	WTC/058/23	Plot Ref :-23/00689/HHI	51	HOUSEHOLDE	
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	21/03/23	
	Location :-	111 MANOR ROAD MANOR ROAD	Date Returned :-	29/03/23	
	Proposal :	: Two storey side and single storey rear extension with associated alterations.			
	Observations : While Witney Town Council does not object to the proposed exter Councillors expressed concerns about the proposed new parking rear of the property. The new parking space and associated drop impact negatively on the street scene, and the proposed addition space would remove on-street parking in this location for other us Members discussed the potential removal of the stone wall to crea additional parking space, it is the opinion of this committee that th forms part of the character of the estate and it is unusual for the b to be removed or replaced with alternative boundary treatments. Members ask that any proposals for a driveway at the rear of prop Manor Road, take account of the current driveway and access red			king space at the Iropped kerb would tional driveway er users. Further, create the at the stone wall he boundary walls hts. property 111	
		Members ask that any proposals for a driv	veway at the rear of	property 111	

Signed :

Chairman Date:

On behalf of :-

Witney Town Council